133 AIR REFUELING SQUADRON

MISSION

LINEAGE

383 Bombardment Squadron (Light) constituted, 28 Jan 1942
Activated, 2 Mar 1942

Redesignated 383 Bombardment Squadron (Dive), 27 Jul 1942
Redesignated 529 Fighter-Bomber Squadron, 30 Sep 1943
Redesignated 529 Fighter Squadron, 30 May 1944
Inactivated, 6 Jan 1946

Redesignated 133 Fighter Squadron, and allotted to ANG, 24 May 1946
Federally recognized, 4 Apr 1947

Redesignated 133 Military Airlift Squadron

Redesignated 133 Tactical Airlift Squadron

Redesignated 133 Air Refueling Squadron, Heavy, 1 Oct 1975
133d Air Refueling Squadron, 1994

STATIONS

Will Rogers Field, OK, 2 Mar 1942

Hunter Field, GA, 4 Jul 1942

Waycross, GA, 19 Oct 1942-18 Jul 1943

Nawadih, India, 17 Sep 1943

Dinjan, India, 19 Oct, 1943

Pungchacheng, China, 23 Aug 1944 (detachment operated from Hsian, China, 18 Sep-30 Oct
1944, and 30 Mar-Aug 1945)

Hsian, China, Aug 1945

Shanghai, China, 22 Oct-14 Dec 1945

Ft Lawton, WA, 5-6 Jan 1946

Will Rogers Field, OK

Grenier Field, NH

Pease ANGB, NH, 1966



ASSIGNMENTS

311 Bombardment (later Fighter-Bomber; Fighter) Group, 2 Mar 1942-6 Jan 1946

311 Bombardment (later Fighter-Bomber; Fighter) Group, 2 Mar 1942 - 6 Jan 1946

101 Fighter Group/Fighter-Interceptor Group 1947-6 Feb 52

4707 Defense Wing -1952

101 Fighter-Interceptor Group/101 Fighter Group

157 Air Transport Group/157 Military Airlift Group/157 Tactical Airlift Group/Air Refueling
Group

157 Operations Group

WEAPON SYSTEMS
Mission Aircraft
V-72, 1942
A-36, 1942
P-51, 1944

P-47

F-47

F-51

F-94

F-86

C-97, 1960
C-124, 1967
C-130, 1971
KC-135, 1975

Support Aircraft
Cc-47
U-3

COMMANDERS

Maj Paul R. Smith, @#1954

LTC Gordon W. Wright, #1972

LTC Peter F. Sullivan

William N. Reddel llI

LTC Laurie Farris, 2009

LTC Paul Hutchinson Sep 06 - Nov 07

LTC Peter F. Sullivan, Jr. Nov 2007-Mar 2009

HONORS
Service Streamers

American Theater

Campaign Streamers



India-Burma; China Defensive; China Offensive
Armed Forces Expeditionary Streamers
Decorations

EMBLEM

MOTTO
NICKNAME

OPERATIONS
Combat in CBI, 16 Oct 1943-14 Aug 1945.

The unit received orders for overseas duty on June 1, 1943. The squadron departed P/E San
Francisco on July 31, 1943 aboard the USS Brazil and arrived in Karachi, India on September 10,
1943.

While in India, the 529th and sister squadrons of the 311th Fighter Group were responsible for
air defense of the Bramhamputra Valley, protecting the northern air route to China and the



offensive operations against enemy troops and supply concentrations in northern Burma.

In addition, the unit provided reconnaissance and patrol missions and furnished "top cover" for
B-24 and B-25 carrying on strategic bombing of Rangoon and escorting transports flying over
"the Hump" to China. During this period the unit provided close ground support for "Merrill's
Marauders"

In China, the squadron protected B-29 Bombers for missions over Japan and Manchuria. By now
the unit had flown V-72's in 1942; A-36's from 1942-1944; and P-51's from 1944-1945. It was
awarded battle participation for the India-Burma, China Defensive, and China Offensive
campaigns.

On January 8, 1946, the unit was deactivated. On May 24, 1946, it was redesignated the 133
Fighter Squadron (SE) and allotted to the National Guard of New Hampshire. On October 4,
1946, the Chief, National Guard Bureau granted the authority for the organization of the 133
Fighter Squadron (SE), NGoNH, and its related elements, the Utility Flight, Detachment B; the
201st Air Service Group (Fighter); and the 133 Weather Station (Type A).

Brigadier General Charles F. Bowen was granted authority to organize and recruit 50 officers
and 303 enlisted men for the 133 Fighter Squadron, the Utility Flight of the 133, Detachment B,
201st Air Service Group (Fighter), and the 133 Weather Station (Type A). Federal recognition
would be withheld until 25% of its authorized officers and 10% of its authorized enlisted men
were on the rolls, an objective finally achieved on April 14, 1947. On that first evening drill,
thirteen officers and 14 enlisted men signed the 133 Fighter Squadron's initial roster with
another two officers and 22 enlisted men signing the rolls of Detachment B, 201st Air Service
Group. Youthful Major Norman J. Fortier, 24, commanded.

With more World War Il surplus planes than people, the 133's main objectives were to bring
the unit to 100% strength, train aircrews and maintain its 28 P-47D, four B-26 four AT-6A two L-
5 and two C-47A.

The first aircraft arrived on May 28th. The unit received eight P-47, flown here from
Middletown, Pa., Air Depot by pilots from Dow Field, Me

Unfortunately, the defense budget was far more generous with surplus aircraft than with
operations and maintenance funds needed to attract and retain experienced World War Il
veterans and build the infrastructure needed to accomplish its Continental Air Command
mission.

Housed in wooden-frame buildings and the weather-beaten North and South hangars vacated
by the Army Air Force on the west side of Grenier Field, the Squadron drilled one night each
week and its pilots flew on weekends or whenever a few hours could be spared from their
civilian jobs to meet their flying requirements.



The traditional 15-day summer encampment each year a special time for building esprit de
corps was generally spent at Dow Air Force Base in Maine, where the entire 101st Group could
be accommodated for integrated training.

Progress of the New Hampshire Squadron met every test and with its sister units in Maine and
Vermont, the 133d soon became a full partner in the operations of the 101st, commanded in
1949-50 by John J. Pesch.

Training received a high priority. While the first aircraft were being delivered to Grenier, Capt.
Stanley Drinkwater, the aircraft maintenance officer, 1st. Lt. John D. Woodward, tech supply
officer, and supply clerk Ernest Purcell were all at Olmsted Field, Pa., being trained in supply
procedures.

The P-47 had been received painted for an Alaskan rescue mission. They were now stripped and
painted for the 133's fighter mission. But parts were hard to get, paychecks often ran late, and
lack of funds caused an occasional "downsizing."

New Hampshire's airmen met two Tuesdays' a month for two hours. Pilots usually flew on
weekends or whenever a few hours could be spared. At first, the unit was made up almost
exclusively of World War Il veterans who joined for a variety of reasons. They loved to fly. They
enjoyed working on aircraft. They needed a job. They enjoyed the unique camaraderie of a
military unit. These men had served all over the world, flying or maintaining B-17's, P-38's, P-
47's, P-51's, C-47's, and many other aircraft in far off places like England, Sicily, North Africa,
Guadalcanal, Bougainville, South America, India, and China.

Pay was considered good. An NCO received $2 per drill while full-time maintenance technicians
earned about $50 a week. Full-timers were expected to be the unit's recruiters and took turns
doing janitorial services, nighttime boiler and guard duty. Each full-timer was personally
interviewed by the adjutant general and the starting salary was a matter of negotiation with
each individual.

Lt. Col. Charles G.Y. Normand, a much-decorated fighter pilot and New Hampshire native,
assumed command of the 133 on November 7, 1947. Under Normand's command, the unit
launched an extensive recruiting drive. The task wasn't easy. Most men had to take an
administrative demotion to get into the unit. Promotions were slow. Many believed
advancement and salaries were held down because New Hampshire wanted to keep costs at
the lowest possible level. But by the late 1940's, promotions came faster and many men at the
very least got back their war-time rank.

As more men without prior service joined the unit, those already on board provided both basic
and technical training at Grenier for the new recruits. Playing the role of basic training
instructor was a very satisfying experience for some older veterans. Relations between officers
and enlisted were, for the most part, very formal.



Annual training consisted of a two-week summer deployment to Dow Field in Bangor, now
occupied by the Maine Air National Guard. Here the 101st Group would all train together. The
133 traveled to Bangor in a convoy. Once on site, would live and eat in tents, don their gas
masks, qualify with small arms, launch aircraft, and practice gunnery.

On December 1, 1948, under the command of First Air Force and Air Defense Command of the
U.S. Army Air Force, the entire 101st was transferred to the Continental Air Command.

For 20 years the New Hampshire Air National Guard would call Grenier Field, Manchester,
home. Known today as Manchester Airport, it was built in 1941 with three runways, each more
than 5,500 feet long.

The base was deactivated in 1948 but was active enough to serve as a training ground for New
Hampshire's early Air Guardsmen. It was activated again in February 1951 when the N.H, Air
National Guard was called into Federal service.

On February 1, 1951 the 133 Fighter Interceptor Squadron was activated for the Korean War.
The 133 had 391 people and flew P-47Ds. The unit would remain on active duty for 21 months
until November 1, 1952.

In October 1950, the New Hampshire Air National Guard was reorganized as a wing, a fighter
group with three tactical squadrons, two supporting groups with their assigned squadrons, and
a medical group.

In January, 1951, an Air Section to the State National Guard Headquarters was activated and on
February 15, a separate ANG State Headquarters was federally recognized with a duty station at
the adjutant general's office in Concord.

The 101st Wing had already been called up on February 1—the very height of the Korean
conflict. Attached to the 4707th Wing, Otis AFB, Mass., the new Granite State unit was sta-
tioned at Grenier under the commands of Lt. Col. Lauren A. Howard, who had succeeded
Normand in March 1949, and Detachment Commander now-Major Stanley Drinkwater, one of
the original unit members. The 133 stayed in Manchester during its 21 months of active duty,
mostly flying gunnery practice missions. Not surprisingly, a majority of officers and a substantial
number of airmen saw duty overseas in different theaters of operations including Korean
combat missions.

The 133 was officially returned to the state on 1 Nov 1952.

Shortly after the return of personnel, the 8133 Squadron was disbanded and its members
merged with the 133 along with a Utility Flight, Air Service Group, and Weather Station. Now
equipped with P-51H, the 133 saw two T-33 phased into service along with two B-25. On
December 12, 1953, Gen. Bowen announced that his squadron would acquire F-94 during the
next few months. Five days later, the AG revealed plans to spend $1,750,000 in Federal funds,



making Grenier the permanent home of the 133 Fighter Interceptor Squadron. The F-94's
(series "A" and "B" ) arrived June 9, 1954,

The Summer Camp (field training) of 1953 was held with units from Vermont and Maine at Otis
Field, Mass. The majority of the training consisted of an aerial gunnery meet. Two pilots from
each state were selected annually to represent each squadron. Pilots chosen from the 133 were
unit commander Maj. Paul Smith and 1st Lt. Howard Weston In competition, pilots got 180
rounds of ammunition. Weston proved to be the best from the tri-states with 44 hits. Smith
finished second with 16, while a Vermonter was third with 13 hits. Three missions were
scheduled, but only two were flown due to the loss of a tow target. New Hampshire won both.

New Hampshire's planes flew much more than those of Maine and Vermont. They logged 675
hours and a total of 752 pilot hours, which is approximately 250 more than the other two
states. For 15 days of field training, the 31 officers and 330 airmen of the NHANG's 133 Fighter
Interceptor Squadron were paid a paltry $30,000.

The main purpose of the 133 was to provide front line defense for the United States and to
intercept aircraft not readily identifiable by radar or pre-filed flight plan. The radar detection
station at North Truro, Mass., was ready to make detection and calls for a scramble. Within
three minutes the 133 could be airborne and heading for a prospective rendezvous point. After
identifying any intruders, our aircraft were supposed to radio back to North Truro for further
instructions. From October, 1954 until June 30, 1956 the 133 served on "scramble alert" status,

Growth came rapidly. By April 1958, the 101st counted nearly 700 officers and airmen. It was
now re-equipped with 24 F-86L More than a dozen were in place by May. The old F-94's were
shipped to other states for training purposes.

Summer Camp, 1958 The unit again found itself at Otis. There was plenty of training during the
two-week encampment. The 133's aircraft flew 225 hours on 119 missions including five
gunnery missions. At the same time, the communications section was busy checking and
repairing radio equipment throughout the flightline. Security police sharpened skills on the
firing range.

On January 15, 1960, in a Union Leader story, State Adjutant General MG. Francis B. McSwiney
announced that the NHANG would swap its recently acquired Sabrejet for eight C-97A The
changeover was effective immediately with the first of the new planes slated to arrive in
February, Flight crews departed the following weekend for training on their new transport
planes.

On September 1, the unit became part of the USAF's Military Air Transport Service (MATS).
With many details left to be ironed out, 101st Fighter Group Commander Col. Paul R. Smith and
Dublin's Capt. James E. Cuddihee, commander of the 133 Fighter Interceptor Squadron, were
two of the first pilots to leave for training at Travis AFB, Calif. With them went MSgt. Robert
Bowen and TSgt. Robert Grady, both of Manchester. A few weeks later, these four men were



followed by other pilots, engineers, and maintenance men.

Now new programs were suddenly needed to train five-man crews for each of the eight C-97s
the unit received. New buildings had to be constructed for maintenance facilities and ground
support personnel required different training.

With a high level of esprit, the NHANG surpassed requirements and in March 1960 became the
first Air National Guard unit to qualify C-97 aircrew. As part of the qualification training, the
crew flew a mission to Japan.

The Berlin Airlift followed swiftly. One of six Air Guard units mobilized for active duty, the New
Hampshire Air National Guard was federalized with MATS on October 1, 1961. Between
October and August 1962, approximately 33% of the total Air Guard in the United States was
activated. Equipped with eight C-97s and manned with 675 guardsmen, the unit would stay at
Grenier Field during the crisis. But its aircraft and crews ranged throughout the world—
touching down at bases in Europe, South America, Alaska, Japan, the Philippines, and Southeast
Asia. These missions came in addition to the on-going ferrying of life-sustaining supplies to
West Berlin, The 157th also airlifted elements of the Turkish Army to Korea and delivered
essential communications equipment to Southeast Asia.

Typical of the C-97 flights leaving Grenier was one that departed in early November. Its long
itinerary started with a stop at Dover AFB, Del., then it was on to Lajes, Azores; Chateauroux,
France; Rhein Main, Germany; Mildenhall, England; Keflavik, Iceland; Harmon, Newfoundland,
and back to Grenier Field. This 9,000-plus-mile flight required in excess of 40 hours of flying
time and was supported by a crew of eight.

One of the first Viet Nam missions came at the request of former NHANG member Captain John
F. Shea, a Catholic Chaplain at Da Nang Air Base. Shea wrote Hamilton in June 1964, telling the
future commander about "Operation Lifeline," a civic project that Shea was overseeing in Da
Nang. The project obtained supplies for local orphanages and nurseries. Shea needed food
preparation items, blankets, medical and office supplies, clothing, tools, personal items, even
playground equipment. Hamilton's subsequent request that the NHANG fly these collected
items to Viet Nam was approved in December 1964.

With relocation behind them, the ops tempo for Viet Nam steadily increased. By March, 1966,
the 157th began regular logistical support for the burgeoning American Forces there. During
the next five years, NHANG crews averaged two flights a month to Southeast Asia, hauling air
freight and military personnel on globe-circling trips which took Guardsmen away from their
homes and jobs for 10- to 20-day periods.

Each mission from New Hampshire to Viet Nam could become an air marathon of sorts. During
one flight, Major Gordon "Bud" Wright and his crew transported ammunition and spare parts.
The trip lasted almost 11 days, as the NHANGers flew from Pease to Dover, Del., where cargo
was loaded. Next it was on to the west coast, then Hawaii, Wake Island, Guam, the Philippines,



and finally, Viet Nam.

One unique mission was "Combat Leave" which happened in July and August 1966. Civilian air
carriers had gone on strike. To help exhausted service men get their R&R, the Air National
Guard, including the NHANG, flew more than 110,000 military personnel throughout the U.S.
and overseas. In the 1,352 "Combat Leave" missions logged, approximately 38,300 military
personnel were transported from Southeast Asia to the states and back again.

The pace of supporting war was unrelenting. Once "in-country," aircrews got four hours ground
time to off-load cargo. Because so many aircraft were coming and going, the quicker cargo
could be unloaded and the plane refueled and gone, the better. In 1967, one NHANG aircrew
saw their extra-fast unloading of cargo and quick departure from Da Nang Air Base awarded the
"617th Military Airlift Support Squadron Tiger Award," an emblem of a small tiger placed on the
crew entrance door. All the Granite Stater's had done was off-load 19,365 pounds of cargo and
on-load 11,152 pounds of cargo and 15,000 pounds of fuel in an hour-and-a-half!

In December 1967, the 157th again changed aircraft, exchanging its C-97 for the C-124.

The first of the lumbering giants arrived on February 9, 1968. By late Fall, the ninth and last
Globemaster touched down and crew transitioning was well underway. By September 1969 the
Group had retrained its pilots to the new aircraft and completed its first Operational Readiness
Inspection as a C-124 unit, qualifying to resume global airlift support.

The transition did see one dramatic snare. On October 22, 1968, Master Sergeant Real
Beaulieu, 42, of Manchester was a crewmember on a routine training flight when the ground
down-lock pin, which locks landing gear in place, failed. Fashioning a pole from two broom
handles and taping another pin to the end, Beaulieu managed to insert the pin while hanging
suspended from the open wheel housing, secured by a tie rope held by another aircrew
member. For his actions, the 13-year NHANG member, Manchester West graduate, and father
of four children, became the first Air National Guardsman to receive the New Hampshire
National Guard Commendation Medal.

Now fully-trained and qualified, the unit finished the decade of the sixties hard at work. Orders
came down from Air National Guard Command Post, Knoxville, Tenn. The 157th hauled much
"out-size" cargo such as trucks, military vehicles, and missile components. It also carried troops
and cargo that didn't require the speedy capability of MAC's all-jet C-141 and C-5A aircraft fleet.

Although two and three-day flights within the U.S. were common, the 157th's overseas
commitment was growing. In 1969 the unit transported more than 1,000 tons of cargo and
2,000 passengers, its aircrews logging 5,236 hours on 44 overseas missions to Vietnam, Eng-
land, France, Germany, Greece, Japan, Portugal, Newfoundland, Puerto Rico, and Taiwan

New Hampshire Air Guard planes and crews flew five tons of food and relief supplies collected
in the southern Maine and New Hampshire seacoast area to Gulfport, Mississippi, when



Hurricane Camille devastated that area in August 1969.

The 157th lost the last of a succession of three C-47 aircraft it had boasted since the unit's
beginning in 1947. The two-engine transport carried 27 passengers or 7,500 pounds of cargo
and cruised at 200 mph. The ANG directed that all C-47s be retired in May 1971 due to
obsolescence and a dwindling replacement parts supply. New Hampshire's "Old Faithful," which
had on occasion been used to transport the governor and other State and Federal officials, was
flown to the USAF storage yard at Davis-Monthan AFB, Az. A U-3, assumed the "support
aircraft" role.

On July By 1971 the first C-130A arrived from Lockbourne AFB, Ohio. About a month later on
August 9, the first flight with all-157th crew took place. By September heavy Phase | transition
training was underway with both aircrew and support personnel at schools throughout the
United States. By early 1972, the 133 Tactical Airlift Squadron began Phase Il (combat readiness
) training and in April, low-level flying and navigational training missions were being flown day
and night along air routes crossing Maine, New Hampshire, and Massachusetts. First drops of
paratroopers and cargo began in early May Although the 157th did not officially join Tactical Air
Command until 10 September 1971, it received the first of its new C-130A on 8 July 1971 when
aircraft No. 56529 was flown to Pease from Lockbourne Air Force Base, Ohio. First flight aboard
the aircraft with a 157th aircrew took place on 9 August 1971, and by September the unit was
heavily engaged in Phase | transition training with both aircrew and support personnel
attending Air Force and Air Guard schools throughout the United States, as well as participating
in Mobile Training Detachment programs at its home base.

As guardsmen carefully conserved gas just to get to UTAs, the summer of '73 promised
excitement. With the ORI behind us, two aircraft and more than 30 unit members participated
in a joint Army, Air Force, and National Guard-Reserve training exercise. The U.S. Readiness
Command training, code named Boldfire 1-74, was centered at Camp Robinson, Ark. During
Boldfire, our ground personnel were airlifted aboard the unit's C-130 to Fort Campbell, Ky. They
remained there throughout the exercise, maintaining aircraft. New Hampshire air planes, in
turn, dropped paratroops and equipment in support of ground forces. During this time frame,
we also had a crew participating in Coronet Shamrock, an Air Force-wide air-drop competition.
The 157th TAG crew, led by Major Alvan Hicks, won the preliminary competition at Ft.
Campbell, earning the right to represent the ANG in further competition.

The Energy Crisis caught up with the NHANG at year's end and all flying activity was suspended
from December 22 until January 7, 1974, due to fuel shortages throughout the country.

First Aircraft Transferred - The transfer of aircraft actually began on 16 April 1975, when the Air
Refueling Squadron, Rickenbacker Air Force Base, Ohio, transferred the first KC-135, Serial
Number 57-1507, to the 160th Air Refueling Group, also located at Rickenbacker. The 160th
began operating on an eight UE basis on 1 July 1975. The second unit, the 157th Air Refueling
Group, Pease Air Force Base, New Hampshire, entered the program on 1 October. Thus, by the
end of December, a 16 UE element had been withdrawn from SAC to support these two units.



While these actions were taking place, SAC had inactivated two 15 UE air refueling squadrons:
the 922d at Wright-Patterson Air Force Base, Ohio, on 30 September as part of the phaseout of
SAC activities at that base, and the 301st at Rickenbacker on 31 December as part of the Air
Reserve Forces program. Redistribution of the 14 UE element remaining after these squadrons
were inactivated was scattered among several units. This action, along with other aircraft
authorization realignments, created eight different categories of squadrons, each with a distinct
UE. 1975

August 1981's Operation "Coronet Rudder," Colonel Lilljedahl commanded a 12 aircraft tanker
task force that refueled F-105s returning from a tour in Denmark.

Less than a year later, in February 1982, 160 NHANGers flew to Andersen AFB, Guam as part of
"Pacific Sentry." This was the first time our KC-135 had flown 10,000 miles in support of a mis-
sion, a unit distance record. During its 15 days on island, the unit conducted missions to
Kadena, Okinawa, Diego Garcia, Philippines, Japan, and Australia. Additionally, the 157th CLS
rebuilt the base fire station.

The year opened with 225 unit personnel deploying to Savannah, Ga., for April's "Operation
Sentry Yankee." Here the 157th refueled F-4C aircraft of the 122nd Tactical Fighter Wing,
Indiana Air National Guard.

From 1 to 14 April, some 130 unit members took part in Operation "Sentry Shakespeare" at
Mildenhall. During the exercise three refuelers supported the European Tanker Task Force and
were assigned to the 306th Strategic Wing.

On April 16, the unit received its first KC-135E's boasting modern fuel saving and quieter
engines. Col. Lilljedahl piloted one of two aircraft from the Boeing plant in Wichita, Kan. to
Pease. All 157th aircraft would be fitted with the new engines by November.

During 1986 the unit deployed personnel to Spain, Florida, and Hawaii.

But by far, the unit's big deployment was to Moron, Spain, in May-June where 300 NHANGers
were a part of Operation "Sentry Sunflower." Moron would later become a real-world deployed
home for the 157th during Desert Storm and 1992's "Restore Hope." The unit fell in love with
the beautiful countryside here as well as its people. Off-duty personnel helped restore an
orphanage and teach children how to swim.

Less than a year later, "Team Spirit '87" took four refuelers and 150 unit members to Hawaii
and Wake Island. The deployment, planned to replace Hickham AFB personnel who were
participating in an exercise involving U.S. and Korean troops, began on March 21, 1987.

No single story of 1989 could top the announcement made on January 5, 1989, confirming the
recommendation of the Realignment and Base Closure Committee that Pease Air Force Base
would, indeed, be shut down. To be sure, the unit moved ahead with an ambitious flying



schedule while wondering about its very future in Newington. In May, some 110 NHANGers
deployed to RAF Mildenhall, assisting the 513th Airborne and Control Wing (ACCW). Alaska was
the destination in October, where 157th personnel spent a week training with the 168th Air
Refueling Squadron at Eielson AFB.

But real-world unrest in the Middle East was drawing the world towards a showdown with Iraq.
In a precursor of things to come, 40 members of the 157th were tasked to provide refueling
support to aircraft moving military forces into the Persian Gulf.

On a cold January 11 1990, NHANG KC-135E tail number 59-1494 caught fire and exploded on
the Pease parking ramp. Fortunately, no one was on board when the aircraft exploded, but one
firefighter sustained minor injuries at the scene. The $12 million aircraft was completely
destroyed.

February 9th the unit's fleet returned to a total of 10 aircraft with the return of an "old friend,"
aircraft 56-3626, a Backup Inventory Aircraft from the 171st AREFW, Pittsburgh. The aircraft
had been assigned as one of the 157th's A-model fleet from 1975 until 1983, when it was
transferred to the 171st in preparation for reengining.

In actuality, the summer had already ended for some members of the 157th. Early on the
morning of August 7, 1990, Desert Shield, a build-up of friendly forces designed to contain the
spread of Iraqi aggression, began. A telephone alert asked every crew member of the 133 Air
Refueling Squadron to provide maximum availability so that an immediate response capability
could be developed. All 125 Operations crew members stepped forward in voluntary support.

The unit began functioning on a 24-hour, seven-days-a-week basis. Forty-two Desert Shield
missions would be flown in the month of August as the 133 helped refuel transport aircraft and
fighters to the Middle East. Forty volunteers were placed on full active duty status for as long as
needed.

Close to 100 guard members reported during the next few days as seven additional airplanes
arrived TDY from Ohio, Pennsylvania, and New Jersey. Together with the 157th's own KC-135E
aircraft, the newly-formed tanker task force became, as 157th Commander Col. Joe Simeone
put it, "Like a coiled snake ready to strike."

By October, the 157th's heavy support of MAC flights in transit from the west coast to Saudi
Arabia began to slow. The unit became one of 12 National Guard outfits tasked with providing
refueling support in Saudi.

Hours before this classified historic flight to a large air base near Jedda, Saudi Arabia, the 13-
member, all-volunteer crew, under the command of "Major Sid" (Girardin) met a mob of
reporters. The media, who had come from as far away as Boston and Portland, wanted to know
why the men were stepping forward.



More than 90 CAMS, all volunteers, provided maintenance support to the tanker task force
there. Five Fuels Management Specialists also made the trip. Two New Hampshire KC-135E's
were always a part of the force, swapping out on two-week tours. Personnel worked 12-hour
shifts around the clock.

As Christmas approached, the first Presidential call-ups closed Desert Shield's all-volunteer
aspect. The N.H. Air Guard now deployed three crews to Site K. Activated were 15 aircraft
mechanic/crew chiefs, 20 phase dock mechanics, and 63 133 Squadron members. The phase
dock people deployed to Moron, Spain, providing intermediate level maintenance support until
war's end.

The build-up of men and material in-theater was complete. Desert Storm, the attack phase of
the Allied plan to liberate Kuwait and destroy Iraqg's army, was ready to begin. With its strategic
location on the Atlantic shore, the 157th mission reverted to an "Air-Bridge" mode, refueling
transiting aircraft. One New Hampshire crew, however, caught at Site K as hostilities began, was
pressed into service for an unscheduled 26 days.

The 157th Desert Shield/Desert Storm war totals are, by any standard, impressive. Some 322
sorties launched, 1,529 hours flown, and 13,743,000 pounds of fuel off-loaded to 20 different
kinds of aircraft. The unit maintained a 91 percent mission capable rate with the highs of 96
percent during two separate months. Every single mission launched on-time for an incredible
100 percent accomplishment rate.

Equally as impressive was the all-out unit performance. More than 600 of the 157th's 1,100
members served on Desert Shield/Desert Storm orders.

The movement came on just 24 hours' notice as Operation "Restore Hope," a humanitarian
mission to bring food to the starving populace of Somalia, was ordered by President Bush. As
they had during Desert Shield, a crush of media showed up for a 6 p.m. pre-flight press
conference on the night of the 4th. State PAO Col. Joe Riley explained the details of the mission
and then escorted the throng of reporters to the flightline.

Simeone, along with 75 other unit members, then boarded one of two aircraft that promptly
launched for Spain. Film of the take-off was carried nation-wide on ABC-TV. The 157th became
lead unit for what would be a 22-aircraft task force combining more than 15 Guard and Reserve
units as well as regular Air Force outfits with a force more than 700-members strong.

By mid-January 1993, the 157th came home as the regular Air Force assumed the TTF mission in
Moron. Our 10 KC-135E were replaced throughout the summer with quieter, more efficient R-
models. By January 1994 all the unit's KC-135's had been converted to R-Models.

With its fleet now "right-sized" from ten to eight aircraft, the 157th provided "airbridge"
support.



The Air National Guard became tasked with refueling support for NATO's "Deny Flight," which
began in April 1993 and was still ongoing through April 1997. The 157th, in addition to its Volk
Field deployment and Support Hope, sent air crews to Istres during the summer.

The busy year saw the 157th again win the coveted Spaatz Trophy for 1993. The award came as
recognition for the Moron effort and later the 157th's part as lead unit for the new Northeast
Tanker Task Force during Restore Hope Il. In all, the 157th had flown 976 sorties in 2,949 hours,
off-loading almost nine million pounds of fuel to 1,469 receivers.

As they had after Volk I in 1994, much of the unit deployed to Istres in May. This time about 200
aircrew, maintenance, and support people, including elements of the 107th, made the trip to
France for the 30-day "Deny Flight" mission.

Maj. Mark Sears, Capt. Dan Hogan, and TSgt. Dave Lajoie, the 133 ARS "ldentity Council"
rediscovered the 133 Fighter Squadron's "Flying Tiger" patch, first approved in November 1942.
The patch was readopted by the unit and is worn today.

There were other deployments in 1996. Some 26 operations personnel served for two weeks in
February at Geilenkirchen Air Base, Germany, refueling NATO's E-3 AWACS aircraft in support of
"Deny Flight" missions. In April, about 400 unit members deployed to Savannah, Ga. for four
days of ATSO training. Unlike Volk | and Il, the unit experienced more intense scenarios geared
to the ORI, now just one year away. This time, training was not conducted with the 107th, but
the Niagara unit

November's "Phoenix Scorpion" saw 14 active duty Air Guard and Air Reserve tankers on the
ramp as AMC began moving F-15's and F-16's to the Middle East. That month, the unit had
already been rotating 145 members through Incirlik Air Base, Turkey, as part of "Operation
Northern Watch," enforcing the no-fly zone over Northern Irag. Three months later in February
1998, the 157th, augmented by four transient aircraft, flew 28 sorties offloading gas to an air
convoy carrying Army personnel and equipment from Georgia to the theater area. In the face of
mounting U.S. military might, Saddam backed down.

In April 1947 the New Hampshire Air National Guard was federally recognized. Based at the
new State Military Reservation at Grenier Field, the 133 Fighter Squadron (SE) was supplied
with P-47D Thunderbolts. The Adjutant General, Brigadier General Charles F. Bowen, began
authorizing commissions.

Special Order Number 1 was issued April 23.«by the Commanding Major, Norman J.
Fortier, appointing the following officers:

Capt. Valmore J. Beaudrault, Provost Marshall

Capt. Roscoe J. Fussell, Ground Safety Officer

Capt. Roger T. Shaw, Training Officer

1Lt John E. Doherty, Air Inspector

1Lt. Roland W. Dumais, Assistant Operations Officer



1Lt. Richard W. Leonard, Public Relations Officer

1Lt. Paul McGuire, Special Service & Personal Affairs Officer

1Lt. Walter L. Ruf, Fund Officer

1Lt. Alfred M. Weigler, Flying Safety Officer

A total of 190 officers and enlisted men were authorized for the combined 133 and the 2015 Air
Service Group.

Manchester served as home base for the NH Air National Guard's 133 Fighter Interceptor
Squadron (FIS). Paul R. Smith Sr., of Derry, commanded the 133 FIS at Grenier Field. He held the
rank of major in 1953 when he began to lead the 133 He recalled the tension right after North
Korea invaded its southern neighbor in June 1950. Smith was working at the Grenier AFB radar
site off Harvey Road. "And, behold about mid-morning, they scrambled two of our airplanes to
go and take a look at a plane that was coming down from the northeast. The pilots said, 'We
don't know what kind of an airplane this is ... what do you want us to do? Shoot it down, or
not?' So, they followed it all the way down to Long Island and the guy landed down there,"
explained Smith.

Manchester served as home base for the NH Air National Guard's 133 Fighter Interceptor
Squadron (FIS). Paul R. Smith Sr., of Derry, commanded the 133 FIS at Grenier Field. He held the
rank of major in 1953 when he began to lead the 133 He recalled the tension right after North
Korea invaded its southern neighbor in June 1950. Smith was working at the Grenier AFB radar
site off Harvey Road. "And, behold about mid-morning, they scrambled two of our airplanes to
go and take a look at a plane that was coming down from the northeast. The pilots said, 'We
don't know what kind of an airplane this is ... what do you want us to do? Shoot it down, or
not?' So, they followed it all the way down to Long Island and the guy landed down there,"
explained Smith.

The two pilots later described the plane they had intercepted and trailed for several hundred
miles. "And | said, 'Well that's a B-23!" And they said, 'Well, we never saw one before.' So, the
guy was real lucky he didn't get shot down that day," exclaimed Smith, perhaps understating
the B-23 pilot's poor sense of timing. "l don't think he knew we were under alert." What a day
to be out flying a Douglas twin-engine bomber, not thinking you'd attract any attention!

Soon Paul Smith found himself up close and personal with a Martin B-26 Marauder. It was off to
the Far East after he was assigned to a project ferrying Marauders to Japan. His Air Force
formation - comprised of four B-26s and a C-54 Skymaster transport - island-hopped its way
through the Pacific to Tokyo. He made sure his B-26 was properly fueled throughout the long
journey over lots and lots of water. Smith spent the next 15 months in Okinawa as an air
inspector for the 26w Fighter Squadron before returning to Grenier Field. "When | got home,"
Smith said, "the adjutant general of New Hampshire called me up and said, 'Would you like to
command the squadron?' And | said, 'Sure. But I'm in the Air Force and you can't get me out.'
He said, 'Oh, yes | can!' So, he got me out and | was named commander of the 133 Fighter
Squadron."



Col. Paul R. Smith, Sr. as Chief of Staff for Air of the NH Air National Guard.

The NHANG helped with maintenance at Grenier - including plowing the runways and
taxiways - before the Air Force Reserve assumed control of base operations in 1955. "We
had two hangars on the southwest corner of the field," said Smith. Later in the decade,
Smith remembered, "We put in jet catchers at each end of the main (17-35) runway." These
were spring-loaded devices to latch onto a jet, similar to mechanisms used aboard aircraft
carriers.

The Air National Guard's 1956 budget also included $1.75 million for permanent facilities at
Grenier Field and new North American F-94 Starfires to replace the aging Mustangs. The
adjutant general, Maj. Gen. Charles F. Bowen, stated: "The buildings to be constructed will
include a large hangar with three, two-story lean-tos attached, an operations building, a
motor service building, a supply building, and miscellaneous small buildings, as well as a
spacious new concrete ramp, taxiways and hardstands."

By 1958, the NHANG had upgraded its fleet yet again by taking delivery of 24 F-86L
Sabrejets. The Sabrejets could fly higher and even faster than the F-94s but were noisy
birds. "l can remember going down Goffs Falls Road looking at one of these houses," said
Col. Smith, as a grin crossed his face and laughter peppered his cadence.

At first it seemed the city didn't really want the airport back. Colonel Smith was the
Commander of the NHANG's 133 Fighter Interceptor Squadron from 1953 until it transferred to
Pease Air Force Base in 1966. "l didn't get very much support from the city," he recalled. "They
really didn't want the airport. | did have Mayor Benoit tell me, he said if this airport costs me
one dollar, | don't want it."

Sunday. Tune 8. 1958 - At about 3:35 p.m., two NH Air National Guard F-86L Sabrejets, from
Grenier's 133 Fighter Interceptor Squadron, were destroyed within minutes in separate
incidents. They were on a routine approach mission when 2. Lt. Peter Gulick radioed that
his engine had quit and he belly-landed in a Dracut, MA swamp. 1. Lt. Paul H. Kennard
circled to ensure Gulick's safety, then crashed in an Atkinson swamp. Both pilots escaped
with minor injuries after parachuting. Gulick landed in a tree and was rescued by
lumbermen working in the area.

Friday. October 12, 1951 - Just before 9:00 a.m., Capt. Thomas R. Burke of the 133 Fighter
Squadron, crash landed his F-47 on the 431 South Willow Street farm of Roman
Petraokowacz just below the Grenier bypass on Route 28. No one was injured.

Based at Grenier Field, the 133 FIS converted from F-94B Starfires to F-86Ls during February of
1958. However, the last Sabres did not arrive until May to complete conversion onto the type,
and this coincided with the withdrawal of the last F-94s to storage. The 133 FIS then took on
the transport role with C-97s starting in September 1960, and the F-86Ls were all reassigned to



the 120th FIS. The last Sabres left Grenier in April 1960.

Based at Grenier Field, the 133 flew the F-86L from February 1958 through September 1960.
52-10150 is seen in 1958 during an open house at Grenier Field in 1958. Aircraft had da-glo
markings and a blue tail stripe outlined in green to denote blue flight. Wing tank noses were
also blue

The 133 FIS flew a combination of F-94As and Bs between May 1954 and April 1958. They
replaced F-51Hs, and were replaced by F-86Ls. This example had previously belonged to the
66th FIS. The dark cap on the vertical stabilizer contains the AN/ARC-27 UHF radio antenna.

133 FIS was flying the North American F-86L when, on 1 September 1960, the squadron
transitioned to the Boeing C-97A and was redesignated 133 ATS. In February 1968, the
squadron received the C-124C and became the 133 MAS. C-130s replaced the C-124s in April
1971.

The 133 FS was extended federal recognition at Grenier Field, Manchester, on 4 April 1947. On
1 February 1951, the unit was called to active duty with its F-47D aircraft. On 1 November 1952,
the squadron was returned to state control and converted to F-51H aircraft. In June 1954, the F-
51 Hs were replaced with F-94A/Bs.

133 F-I Squadron: federalized ANG 10 Feb 51 at Grenier AFB, NH, as the 101st F-T Wing; called
133 Ftr Sq, S.E. when federalized with F-47D acft; transferred to 4707th Defense Wing; released
from AD and returned to control of State of NH 1 Nov 52.

08 June 58-Two NH ANG F-86L Sabrejets of Grenier's 133 FIS were destroyed in a crash. Both
pilots escaped with minor injuries.

1 Feb 1951: Called to active duty as part of the Korean War call-up but remained at Grenier
Field as the 133 FIS.

1 Nov 1952: Returned to state control and converted from F-47Ds to North American F-51Hs.
Jim 1954: Converted from F-51Hs to Lockheed F-94A/Bs.

16 Apr 1956: Reached group status with federal recognition of 101st FIG.

Apr 1958: Converted from F-94A/Bs to North American F-86Ls.

Summer 1960: Converted from F-86Ls to Boeing C-97As.

1 Sep 1960: Became MATS-gained, squadron redesignated 133 ATS, and group renumbered and
redesignated 157th ATG.



1 Oct 1961: Called to active duty as part of the Berlin Crisis call-up to conduct worldwide airlift
missions from its base at Grenier Field.

31 Aug 1962: Returned to state control at Grenier Field.

Jan 1966: Moved to Pease AFB, redesignated 133 MAS, and became MAC-gained following
MATS redesignation.

Dec 1967: Converted from C-97As to Douglas C-124Cs.

Summer 1971: Converted from C-124Cs to Lockheed C-130As.

11 Sep 1971: Redesignated 133 TAS and became TAC gained.

1 Dec 1974: Became MAC-gained upon transfer of tactical airlift resources from TAC to MAC.
Summer 1975: Converted from C-130As to Boeing KC-135As.

1 Oct 1975: Redesignated 133 AREFS and became SAC gained.

FY84: Converted from KC-135As to KC-135ES.

Aug 1990: Volunteers began flying missions in support of Operation Desert Shield.

Sep 1990: Pease AFB inactivated, airfield transferred to local authorities, and Guard facilities
designated Pease ANGS.

20 Dec 1990: Called to active duty as part of Operation Desert Shield call-up.
31 May 1991: Released from active duty after taking part in Desert Shield/ Desert Storm.
15 Mar 1992: Unit abbreviation changed to 133 ARS, 157th ARG.

The 133 AREFS converted to KC-135As during the summer of 1975 and obtained re-engined KC-
135Es during FY84. This example in 1992 sports the new AMC mid-gray color scheme.

Before concern over detectability in air combat became the norm, the USAF was not shy to
apply conspicuous Dayglo markings, as carried by this F-86L of the 133 FIS.



